


























6.3. Payment Information: In determining the License Fee, the number of 
Subscribers shall be measured as of December 31 of the preceding calendar year. The License 
Fee shall be paid no later than March 15 of each year during the term of this License. 

7. CUSTOMER SERVICE 

Customer Service Requirements are set forth in Exhibit C, which shall be binding unless 
amended by written consent of the parties. Licensee shall comply with the billing and 
termination of service provisions set forth in 207 CMR 10.00, as amended, 

8. REPORTS AND RECORDS 

8.1. Open Books and Records: Upon reasonable written notice to the Licensee 
and with no less than thirty (30) business days written notice to the Licensee, the Issuing 
Authority shall have the right to inspect Licensee's books and records pertaining to Licensee's 
provision of Cable Service in the Town at any time during Normal Business Hours and on a 
nondisruptive basis, as are reasonably necessary to ensure compliance with the terms of this 
License. Such notice shall specifically reference the section or subsection of this License which 
is under review, so that Licensee may organize the necessary books and records for appropriate 
access by the Issuing Authority. Licensee shall not be required to maintain any books and 
records for License compliance purposes longer than three (3) years. Notwithstanding anything 
to the contrary set forth herein, Licensee shall not be required to disclose information that it 
reasonably deems to be proprietary or confidential in nature, nor disclose any of its or an 
Affiliate's books and records not relating to the provision of Cable Service in.the Town. The 
Issuing Authority shall treat any information disclosed by Licensee as confidential and shall only 
disclose it to employees, representatives, and agents thereof that have a need to know, or in order 
to enforce the provisions hereof unless required to do so by law. Licensee shall not be required 
to provide Subscriber information in violation of Section 631 of the Communications Act, 4 7 
u.s.c. § 551. 

8.2. Records Required: Licensee shall at all times maintain: 

8.2.1. Records of all written complaints for a period of three (3) years 
after receipt by Licensee. The term "complaint" as used herein shall mean any written or verbal 
contact with Licensee in connection with a subscription in which a Subscriber expresses 
dissatisfaction with an act, omission, product or service relating to the provision of Cable 
Services in the Town that is (i) within Licensee's control, and (ii) requires a corrective measure 
on the part of Licensee. Complaints recorded will not be limited to complaints requiring an 
employee service call; 

8.2.2. Records of outages for a period of three (3) years after occurrence, 
indicating date, duration, area, and the number of Subscribers affected, type of outage, and 
cause; 

8.2.3. Records of service calls for repair and maintenance for a period of 
three (3) years after resolution by Licensee, indicating the date and time service was required, the 
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date of acknowledgment and date and time service was scheduled (if it was scheduled), and the 
date and time service was provided, and (if different) the date and time the problem was 
resolved; 

8.2.4. Records of installation/reconnection and requests for service 
extension for a period of three (3) years after the request was fulfilled by Licensee, indicating the 
date of request, date of acknowledgment, and the date and time service was extended; and 

8.2.5. A map showing the area of coverage for the provisioning of Cable 
Services and estimated timetable to commence providing Cable Service. 

9. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

9.1. Insurance: 

9 .1.1. Licensee shall maintain in full force and effect, at its own cost and 
expense, during the term of this License, the following insurance coverage: 

9.1.1.1. Commercial General Liability Insurance in the amount of 
one million dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit for property damage and bodily injury. 
Such insurance shall cover the construction, operation and maintenance of the Cable System, and 
the conduct of Licensee's Cable Service business in the Town. 

9.1.1.2. Automobile Liability Insurance in the amount of one 
million dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage 
coverage. 

9.1.1.3. Workers' Compensation Insurance meeting all legal 
requirements of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

9.1.1.4. Employers' Liability Insurance in the following amounts: 
(A) Bodily Injury by Accident: $100,000; and (B) Bodily Injury by Disease: $100,000 
employee limit; $500,000 policy limit. 

9 .1.1.5 Excess liability or umbrella coverage of not less than five 
million dollars ($5,000,000). 

9.1.2. The Town shall be designated as additional insured under each of 
the insurance policies required in this Article 10 except Excess liability/umbrella insurance, 
Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance. 

9.1.3. Licensee shall not cancel any required insurance policy without 
submitting documentation to the Issuing Authority verifying that the Licensee has obtained 
alternative insurance in conformance with this Agreement. 
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9 .1.4. Each of the required insurance policies shall be with sureties 
qualified to do business in the State of Massachusetts, with a B+ or better rating for financial 
condition and financial performance by Best's Key Rating Guide, Property/Casualty Edition. 

9.1.5. Upon written request, Licensee shall deliver to the Issuing 
Authority Certificates of Insurance showing evidence of the required coverage. 

9.2. Indemnification: 

9 .2.1. Licensee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Town at all 
times during the term of this License from any and all claims and actions for injury and damage 
to persons or property, both real and personal, caused by the installation, operation, or 
maintenance of any structure, equipment, wire or cable authorized to be installed pursuant to this 
License, provided that the Town shall give Licensee written notice of its request for 
indemnification within a period of time from receipt of a claim sufficient to enable Licensee to 
avoid entry of a default judgment and which does not prejudice the Licensee's ability to defend 
the claim or action. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee shall not indemnify the Town for 
any damages, liability or claims resulting from the willful misconduct or negligence of the Town, 
its officers, agents, employees, attorneys, consultants, independent contractors or third parties or 
for any activity or function conducted by any Person other than Licensee in connection with PEG 
Access or EAS, or the distribution of any Cable Service over the Cable System. 

9.2.2. With respect to Licensee's indemnity obligations set forth in 
Section 9.2.1, Licensee shall, at its own expense, provide the defense of any claims brought 
against the Town by selecting counsel of Licensee's choice to defend the claim, subject to the 
consent of the Town, which shall not unreasonably be withheld. Nothing herein shall be deemed 
to prevent the Town from cooperating with the Licensee and participating in the defense of any 
litigation by its own counsel at its own cost and expense, provided however, that after 
consultation with the Town, Licensee shall have the right to defend, settle or compromise any 
claim or action arising hereunder, and Licensee shall have the authority to decide the 
appropriateness and the amount of any such settlement. In the event that the terms of any such 
proposed settlement includes the release of the Town and the Town does not consent to the terms 
of any such proposed settlement, Licensee shall not settle the claim or action but its obligation to 
indemnify the Town shall in no event exceed the amount of such proposed settlement. 

9.2.3. The Town shall hold harmless and defend Licensee from and 
against, and shall be responsible for, damages, liability or claims resulting from or arising out of 
the willful misconduct or negligence of the Town. 

9.2.4. The Town shall be responsible for its own acts of willful 
misconduct or negligence, or breach of obligation, subject to any and all defenses and limitations 
of liability provided by law. The Licensee shall not be required to indemnify the Town for acts 
of the Town which constitute willful misconduct or negligence, on the part of the Town, its 
officers, employees, agents, attorneys, consultants, independent contractors or third parties. 

9.3. Performance Bond. Prior to the Service Date, Licensee shall provide to 
the Town, and shall maintain throughout the term of this License, a performance bond in the 
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Town's favor in the amount of Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) securing the 
performance of Licensee's obligations under this License. The performance bond shall be 
substantially in the form of Exhibit D. In the event that a performance bond provided pursuant 
to this License is not renewed or is cancelled, Licensee shall provide new security pursuant to 
this Article within thirty (30) days of such failure to renew or cancellation. Neither cancellation, 
nor termination nor refusal by the surety to extend the bond, nor the inability of Licensee to file a 
replacement bond or replacement security for its obligations under this License, shall constitute a 
loss to the Town recoverable under the bond. 

10. TRANSFER OF LICENSE 

Subject to Section 617 of the Communications Act, 47 U.S.C. § 537, no Transfer of this 
License shall occur without the prior consent of the Issuing Authority, provided that such 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned consistent with M.G.L. c. 
166A, Section 7, and the Cable Division's transfer regulations (207 CMR 4.00, et. seq.). No 
such consent shall be required, however, for a transfer in trust, by mortgage, by other 
hypothecation, by assignment of any rights, title, or interest of the Licensee in this License or the 
Cable System in order to secure indebtedness, or otherwise for transactions otherwise excluded 
under Section 1.43.2 above, except to the extent that any of the foregoing are determined to be a 
transfer of control pursuant to M.G.L. c. 166A, Section 7, and 207 CMR 4.01, in which case 
such transaction shall be subject to the Cable Division's transfer regulations. 

11. RENEWAL OF LICENSE 

The Town and Licensee agree that any proceedings undertaken by the Town that relate to 
the renewal of this License shall be governed by and comply with the provisions of Section 626 
of the Communications Act, 47 U.S.C. § 546 and applicable provisions of the Massachusetts 
Cable Law, as each may be amended from time to time. The Town shall notify Licensee of all of 
its assessments regarding the identity of future cable-related community needs and interests, as 
well as the past performance of Licensee under the terms of this License, and such assessments 
shall be provided to Licensee by the Town. 

12. ENFORCEMENT AND TERMINATION OF LICENSE 

12.1. Notice of Violation: If at any time the Issuing Authority believes that 
Licensee has not complied with the terms of this License, the Issuing Authority shall informally 
discuss the matter with Licensee. If these discussions do not lead to resolution of the problem in 
a reasonable time, the Issuing Authority shall then notify Licensee in writing of the exact nature 
of the alleged noncompliance (for purposes of this Article, the "Noncompliance Notice"). 

12.2. Licensee's Right to Cure or Respond: Licensee shall have thirty (30) days 
from receipt of the Noncompliance Notice to: (i) respond to the Issuing Authority, if Licensee 
contests (in whole or in part) the assertion of noncompliance; (ii) cure such noncompliance; or 
(iii) in the event that, by its nature, such noncompliance cannot be cured within such thirty (30) 
day period, initiate reasonable steps to remedy such noncompliance and notify the Issuing 
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Authority of the steps being taken and the date by which they are projected to be completed. 
Upon cure of any noncompliance, the Town shall provide Licensee with written confirmation 
that such cure has been effected. 

12.3. Public Hearing: In the event that Licensee fails to respond to the 
Noncompliance Notice pursuant to the procedures required by this Article, or in the event that 
the alleged noncompliance is not remedied within thirty (30) days or the date projected pursuant 
to Section 12.2(iii) above, if the Town seeks to continue its investigation into the alleged 
noncompliance, then the Issuing Authority shall schedule a public hearing. The Issuing 
Authority shall provide Licensee at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of such public 
hearing, which will specify the time, place and purpose of such public hearing, and provide 
Licensee the opportunity to be heard. 

12.4. Enforcement: Subject to applicable federal and State law, in the event the 
Issuing Authority, after the public hearing set forth in Section 12.3, determines that Licensee is 
in default of any provision of this License, the Issuing Authority may: 

12.4.1. Seek specific performance of any provision, which reasonably 
lends itself to such remedy, as an alternative to damages; or 

12.4.2. Commence an action at law for monetary damages or seek other 
equitable relief; 

12.4.3. In the case of a substantial noncompliance of a material provision 
of this License, seek to revoke this License in accordance with Section 12.5; or 

12.4.4. Assess liquidated damages in accordance with the schedule set 
forth in Section 12.6 below. 

12.5. Revocation: Should the Issuing Authority seek to revoke this License 
after following the procedures set forth in this Article, including the public hearing described in 
Section 12.3, the Issuing Authority shall give written notice to Licensee of such intent. The 
notice shall set forth the specific nature of the noncompliance. The Licensee shall have ninety 
(90) days from receipt of such notice to object in writing and to state its reasons for such 
objection. In the event the Issuing Authority has not received a satisfactory response from 
Licensee, it may then seek termination of this License at a second public hearing. The Issuing 
Authority shall cause to be served upon the Licensee, at least thirty (30) days prior to such public 
hearing, a written notice specifying the time and place of such hearing and stating its intent to 
revoke this License. 

12.5.1. At the designated public hearing, Licensee shall be provided a fair 
opportunity for full participation, including the rights to be represented by legal counsel, to 
introduce relevant evidence, to require the production of evidence, and to require the production 
of testimony and evidence consistent with law. A complete verbatim record and transcript shall 
be made of such hearing. 

12.5.2. Following the second public hearing, Licensee shall be provided 
up to thirty (30) days to submit its proposed findings and conclusions to the Issuing Authority in 
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writing and thereafter the Issuing Authority shall determine (i) whether an event of default has 
occurred under this License; (ii) whether such event of default is excusable; and (iii) whether 
such event of default has been cured or will be cured by the Licensee. The Issuing Authority 
shall also determine whether it will revoke this License based on the information presented, or, 
where applicable, grant additional time to the Licensee to effect any cure. If the Issuing 
Authority determines that it will revoke this License, the Issuing Authority shall promptly 
provide Licensee with a written determination setting forth the Issuing Authority's reasoning for 
such revocation. Licensee may appeal such written determination of the Issuing Authority to the 
Cable Division or to an appropriate court, which shall have the power to review the decision of 
the Issuing Authority consistent with applicable law and regulation. Licensee shall be entitled to 
such relief as the court finds appropriate. Such appeal must be taken within sixty (60) days of 
Licensee's receipt of the written determination of the Issuing Authority. 

12.5.3. The Issuing Authority may, at its sole discretion, take any lawful 
action that it deems appropriate to enforce the Issuing Authority's rights under this License in 
lieu of revocation of this License. 

12.6. Liquidated Damages: The parties agree and acknowledge that the 
Licensee's failure to comply with certain provisions of this Final License will result in injury to 
the Issuing Authority, the extent of which will be difficult to estimate. As such, the parties agree 
to the liquidated damages provided for in this Section 12.6, with such liquidated damages 
representing the parties' best estimate of the damages resulting from the specified 
noncompliance, and that said liquidated damages are fair and reasonable compensation for such 
damage. Any such liquidated damages shall be assessed as of the date that the Licensee received 
written notice of the provision(s) with which the Issuing Authority believes the Licensee has 
failed to comply, provided that the Issuing Authority has made a determination of default in 
accordance with the procedures set forth in Sections 12.1 through 12.4 above. 

On an annual basis, the Licensee shall not be liable for liquidated damages that 
exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000). 

The liquidated damages shall be assessed in the following manner: 

12.6.1. For failure to offer Cable Service in accordance with Sections 3.1 
and 3.2, five hundred dollars ($500) per day for each day that such failure continues; 

12.6.2. For failure to obtain the advance written consent of the Issuing 
Authority for any transfer of this License in accordance with Article 10, three hundred dollars 
($300) per day for each day that such failure continues; 

12.6.3. For failure to comply with the PEG Access obligations in 
accordance with Sections 5.1 and 5.2, three hundred dollars ($300) per day for each day that 
such failure continues; 

12.6.4. For failure to comply with the customer service standards in 
accordance with Article 7, one hundred dollars ($100) per day for each day that such failure 
continues; and 
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12.6.5. For failure to provide, install and activate Cable Service to public 
buildings in accordance with Section 3.3, fifty dollars ($50) per day for each day that such 
failure continues; 

12.6.6. For failure to submit reports pursuant to Article 8, fifty dollars 
($50) per day for each day that such failure continues; 

All violations or failures from the same factual events affecting multiple 
Subscribers shall be assessed as a single violation, and a violation or a failure may only be 
assessed under any one of the above-referenced categories. 

13. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

13.1. Actions of Parties: In any action by the Town or Licensee that is 
mandated or permitted under the terms hereof, such party shall act in a reasonable, expeditious, 
and timely manner. Furthermore, in any instance where approval or consent is required under 
the terms hereof, such approval or consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or 
conditioned. 

13.2. Binding Acceptance: This Agreement shall bind and benefit the parties 
hereto and their respective heirs, beneficiaries, administrators, executors, receivers, trustees, 
successors and assigns, and the promises and obligations herein shall survive the expiration date 
hereof. 

13.3. Preemption: In the event that federal or State law, rules, or regulations 
preempt a provision or limit the enforceability of a provision of this Agreement, the provision 
shall be read to be preempted to the extent and for the time, but only to the extent and for the 
time, required by law. In the event such federal or State law, rule or regulation is subsequently 
repealed, rescinded, amended or otherwise changed so that the provision hereof that had been 
preempted is no longer preempted, such provision shall thereupon return to full force and effect, 
and shall thereafter be binding on the parties hereto, without the requirement of further action on 
the part of the Issuing Authority. 

13.4. Force Majeure: Licensee shall not be held in default under, or in 
noncompliance with, the provisions of this License, nor suffer any enforcement or penalty 
relating to noncompliance or default, where such noncompliance or alleged defaults occurred or 
were caused by a Force Majeure. Furthermore, the parties hereby agree that it is not the Town's 
intention to subject Licensee to penalties, fines, forfeitures or revocation of this License for 
violations of this License where the violation was a good faith error that resulted in no or 
minimal negative impact on Subscribers, or where strict performance would result in practical 
difficulties and hardship being placed upon Licensee that outweigh the benefit to be derived by 
the Town and/or Subscribers. 

13.5. Performance Evaluations. If, during the term of this License, the Town 
conducts an evaluation of Licensee's performance under this License or otherwise related to 
Licensee's provision of Cable Service in the Town, then the Town shall provide Licensee with a 
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written report with respect to Licensee's compliance within ten (10) days after the conclusion of 
such evaluation. 

13.6. Notices: Unless otherwise expressly stated herein, notices required under 
this License shall be mailed first class, postage prepaid, to the addressees below. Each party may 
change its designee by providing written notice to the other party. 

13.6.1. Notices to Licensee shall be mailed to: 

Verizon New England, Inc. 
185 Franklin Street 
Boston, MA 02110 
Attention: Donna C. Cupelo, President 

with a copy to: 

Verizon Telecom 
One Verizon Way 
Room VC43E010 
Basking Ridge, NJ 07920-1097 
Attention: Jack White, Senior VP and Deputy General Counsel 

13.6.2. Notices to the Issuing Authority shall be mailed to: 

Board of Selectmen 
Town of Tyngsborough 
Tyngsborough Town Hall 
25 Bryants Lane 
Tyngsborough, MA 01879 
Attention: Town Administrator 

13. 7. Entire Agreement: This License and the Exhibits hereto constitute the 
entire agreement between Licensee and the Town, and it supersedes all prior or contemporaneous 
agreements, representations or understandings (written or oral) of the parties regarding the 
subject matter hereof. 

13.8. Amendments: Amendments or modifications to this License shall be 
mutually agreed to in writing by the parties. 

13.9. Captions: The captions and headings of articles and sections throughout 
this Agreement are intended solely to facilitate reading and reference to the sections and 
provisions of this Agreement. Such captions shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this 
Agreement. 

13.10. Severabi/ity: If any section, subsection, sentence, paragraph, term, or 
provision hereof is determined to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable by any court of competent 
jurisdiction or by any State or federal regulatory authority having jurisdiction thereof, such 
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determination shall have no effect on the validity of any other section, subsection, sentence, 
paragraph, term or provision hereof, all of which will remain in full force and effect for the term 
of this License. 

13 .11. Recitals: The recitals set forth in this Agreement are incorporated into the 
body of this Agreement as if they had been originally set forth herein. 

13.12. FTTP Network Transfer Prohibition: Under no circumstance including, 
without limitation, upon expiration, revocation, termination, denial of renewal of this License or 
any other action to forbid or disallow Licensee from providing Cable Services, shall Licensee or 
its assignees be required to sell any right, title, interest, use or control of any portion of 
Licensee's FTTP Network including, without limitation, the Cable System and any capacity used 
for Cable Service or otherwise, to the Town or any third party. Licensee shall not be required to 
remove the FTTP Network or to relocate the FTTP Network or any portion thereof as a result of 
revocation, expiration, termination, denial of renewal or any other action to forbid or disallow 
Licensee from providing Cable Services. This provision is not intended to contravene leased 
access requirements under Title VI or the PEG requirements set out in this Agreement. 

13.13. Interpretation: The Town and Licensee each acknowledge that it has 
received independent legal advice in entering into this Agreement. In the event that a dispute 
arises over the meaning or application of any term(s) of this Agreement, such term(s) shall not be 
construed by the reference to any doctrine calling for ambiguities to be construed against the 
drafter of the Agreement. 

13.14. No Third Party Beneficiary: Nothing in this License shall be construed to 
create or confer any rights or benefits to any third party. 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 
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AGREED TO THIS3? DAY OF ~t-6,/,t*~ , 2006. 

TO OF TYNGSBOROUGH VERIZON NEW ENGLAND, INC. 

leo, Chair 

~-:--:----;;:,~~ 
APPROVED e,lo 

,~E~\-Z: 
Kevin O'Connor 

Jason Booth 
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EXIDBITA 

SERVICE AREA MAP 

(See attached map) 

Town of Tyngsborough License Agreement - 10/30/06 



~ 
1'8112'Jl!1 

Initial Service Area • 
Tyngsborough WC 

Extended Service Area • 
Dracut, Lowell & 
North Clemsford WC -·· L .. J LFA Boundary 

Service Area Map 
for the Town of 

Tyngsborough, Massachusetts 

2 -----=====::J Miles 

0 0.5 1 



EXHIBITB 

MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS TO BE PROVIDED FREE CABLE SERVICE 

Town Hall 25 Bryants Lane 

Public Library 25 Bryants Lane 

Police Station 20 Westford Road 

Fire Department Kendall Road 

Fire Department Lakeview A venue 

Fire Department Chestnut Road 

Highway Dept. 89 Kendall Road 

High School 36 Norris Road 

Middle School 50 Norris Road 

School Administration 50 Norris Road 

Elementary School 205 Westford Road 

Early Childhood Center 135 Coburn Road 

Community Center 180 Lakeview A venue 

Recreation Center 120 Westford Road 

Sherburne House 46 Coburn Road 

Old Town Hall 10 Kendall Road 

Senior Center Westford Road 
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EXHIBITC 

CUSTOMER SERVICE STANDARDS 

These standards shall, starting six months after the Service Date, apply to the Licensee to the 
extent it is providing Cable Services over the Cable System in the Town. 

SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS 

A. Respond: Licensee's investigation of a Service Interruption by receiving a 
Subscriber call and opening a trouble ticket, if required. 

B. Service Call: The action taken by the Licensee to correct a Service Interruption 
the effect of which is limited to an individual Subscriber. 

C. Significant Outage: A significant outage of the Cable Service shall mean any 
Service Interruption lasting at least four ( 4) continuous hours that affects at least ten percent 
(10%) of the Subscribers in the Service Area. 

D. Standard Installation: Installations where the Subscriber is within two hundred 
fifty (250) feet of trunk or feeder lines. 

SECTION 2: TELEPHONE AVAILABILITY 

A. The Licensee shall maintain a toll-free number to receive all calls and inquiries 
from Subscribers in the Town and/or residents regarding Cable Service. Licensee representatives 
trained and qualified to answer questions related to Cable Service in the Service Area must be 
available to receive reports of Service Interruptions twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days 
a week, and other inquiries at least forty-five (45) hours per week. Licensee representatives shall 
identify themselves by name when answering this number. 

B. The Licensee's telephone numbers shall be listed, with appropriate description 
(e.g. administration, customer service, billing, repair, etc.), in the directory published by the local 
telephone company or companies serving the Service Area, beginning with the next publication 
cycle after acceptance of this License by the Licensee. 

C. Licensee may use an Automated Response Unit ("ARU") or a Voice Response 
Unit ("VRU") to distribute calls. If a foreign language routing option is provided, and the 
Subscriber does not enter an option, the menu will default to the first tier menu of English 
options. 

After the first tier menu (not including a foreign language rollout) has run through three 
times, if customers do not select any option, the ARU or VRU will forward the call to a queue 
for a live representative. The Licensee may reasonably substitute this requirement with another 
method of handling calls from customers who do not have touch-tone telephones. 
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D. Under Normal Operating Conditions, calls received by the Licensee shall be 
answered within thirty (30) seconds. The Licensee shall meet this standard for ninety percent 
(90%) of the calls it receives at all call centers receiving calls from Subscribers, as measured on a 
cumulative quarterly calendar basis. Measurement of this standard shall include all calls 
received by the Licensee at all call centers receiving calls from Subscribers, whether they are 
answered by a live representative, by an automated attendant, or abandoned after 30 seconds of 
call waiting. 

E. Under Normal Operating Conditions, callers to the Licensee shall receive a busy 
signal no more than three (3%) percent of the time during any calendar quarter. 

F. Upon request from the Town, but in no event more than once a quarter thirty (30) 
days following the end of each quarter, the Licensee shall report to the Town the following for 
all call centers receiving calls from Subscribers except for temporary telephone numbers set up 
for national promotions: 

(1) 
Subsection 2.D. 

Percentage of calls answered within thirty (30) seconds as set forth in 

(2) Percentage of time customers received busy signal when calling the 
Verizon service center as set forth in Subsection 2.E. 

Subject to consumer privacy requirements, underlying activity will be made available to 
the Town for review upon reasonable request. 

G. At the Licensee's option, the measurements and reporting above may be changed 
from calendar quarters to billing or accounting quarters. The Licensee shall notify the Town of 
such a change at least thirty (30) days in advance of any implementation. 

SECTION 3: INSTALLATIONS AND SERVICE APPOINTMENTS 

A. All installations will be in accordance with FCC rules, including but not limited 
to, appropriate grounding, connection of equipment to ensure reception of Cable Service, and the 
provision of required consumer information and literature to adequately inform the Subscriber in 
the utilization of the Licensee-supplied equipment and Cable Service. 

B. The Standard Installation shall be performed within seven (7) business days after 
the placement of the Optical Network Terminal ("ONT") on the customer's premises or within 
seven (7) business days after an order is placed if the ONT is already installed on the customer's 
premises. 

The Licensee shall meet this standard for ninety-five percent (95%) of the Standard 
Installations it performs, as measured on a calendar quarter basis, excluding customer requests 
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for connection later than seven (7) days after ONT placement or later than seven (7) days after an 
order is placed if the ONT is already installed on the customer's premises. 

C. The Licensee shall provide the Town with a report upon request from the Town, 
but in no event more than once a quarter thirty (30) days following the end of each quarter, 
noting the percentage of Standard Installations completed within the seven (7) day period, 
excluding those requested outside of the seven (7) day period by the Subscriber. Subject to 
consumer privacy requirements, underlying activity will be made available to the Town for 
review upon reasonable request. 

At the Licensee's option, the measurements and reporting of above may be changed from 
calendar quarters to billing or accounting quarters. The Licensee shall notify the Town of such a 
change not less than thirty (30) days in advance. 

D. The Licensee will offer Subscribers "appointment window" alternatives for 
arrival to perform installations, Service Calls and other activities of a maximum four (4) hours 
scheduled time block during appropriate daylight available hours, usually beginning at 8:00 AM 
unless it is deemed appropriate to begin earlier by location exception. At the Licensee's 
discretion, the Licensee may offer Subscribers appointment arrival times other than these four (4) 
hour time blocks, if agreeable to the Subscriber. These hour restrictions do not apply to 
weekends. 

SECTION 4: SERVICE INTERRUPTIONS AND OUTAGES 

A. The Licensee shall promptly notify the Town of any Significant Outage of the 
Cable Service. 

B. The Licensee shall exercise commercially reasonable efforts to limit any 
Significant Outage for the purpose of maintaining, repairing, or constructing the Cable System. 
Except in an emergency or other situation necessitating a more expedited or alternative 
notification procedure, the Licensee may schedule a Significant Outage for a period of more than 
four (4) hours during any twenty-four (24) hour period only after the Town and each affected 
Subscriber in the Service Area have been given fifteen (15) days prior notice of the proposed 
Significant Outage. 

C. Licensee representatives who are capable of responding to Service Interruptions 
must be available to Respond twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. 

D. Under Normal Operating Conditions, the Licensee must Respond to a call from a 
Subscriber regarding a Service Interruption or other service problems within the following time 
frames: 

(1) Within twenty-four (24) hours, including weekends, of receiving 
Subscriber calls respecting Service Interruptions in the Service Area. 

(2) The Licensee must begin actions to correct all other Cable Service 
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problems the next business day after notification by the Subscriber or the Town of a Cable 
Service problem. 

E. Under Normal Operating Conditions, the Licensee shall complete Service 
Calls within seventy-two (72) hours of the time Licensee commences to Respond to the Service 
Interruption, not including weekends and situations where the Subscriber is not reasonably 
available for a Service Call to correct the Service Interruption within the seventy-two (72) hour 
period. 

F. The Licensee shall meet the standard in Subsection E. of this Section for ninety 
percent (90%) of the Service Calls it completes, as measured on a quarterly basis. 

G. The Licensee shall provide the Town with a report upon request from the Town, 
but in no event more than once a quarter within thirty (30) days following the end of each 
calendar quarter, noting the percentage of Service Calls completed within the seventy-two (72) 
hour period not including Service Calls where the Subscriber was reasonably unavailable for a 
Service Call within the seventy-two (72) hour period as set forth in this Section. Subject to 
consumer privacy requirements, underlying activity will be made available to the Town for 
review upon reasonable request. At the Licensee's option, the above measurements and reporting 
may be changed for calendar quarters to billing or accounting quarters. The Licensee shall notify 
the Town of such a change at least thirty (30) days in advance. 

H. Under Normal Operating Conditions, the Licensee shall provide a credit upon 
Subscriber request when all Channels received by that Subscriber are out of service for a period 
of twenty-four (24) consecutive hours or more. The credit shall equal, at a minimum, a 
proportionate amount of the affected Subscriber(s) current monthly bill. In order to qualify for 
the credit, the Subscriber must promptly report the problem and allow the Licensee to verify the 
problem if requested by the Licensee. If Subscriber availability is required for repair, a credit 
will not be provided for such time, if any, that the Subscriber is not reasonably available. 

I. Under Normal Operating Conditions, if a Significant Outage affects all Video 
Programming Cable Services for more than twenty-four (24) consecutive hours, the Licensee 
shall issue an automatic credit to the affected Subscribers in the amount equal to their monthly 
recurring charges for the proportionate time the Cable Service was out, or a credit to the affected 
Subscribers in the amount equal to the charge for the basic plus enhanced basic level of service 
for the proportionate time the Cable Service was out, whichever is technically feasible or, if both 
are technically feasible, as determined by Licensee provided such determination is non­
discriminatory. Such credit shall be reflected on Subscriber billing statements within the next 
available billing cycle following the outage. 

J. With respect to service issues concerning cable services provided to Town 
facilities, Licensee shall Respond to all inquiries from the Town within four (4) hours and shall 
commence necessary repairs within twenty-four (24) hours under Normal Operating Conditions. 
If such repairs cannot be completed within twenty-four (24) hours, the Licensee shall notify the 
Town in writing as to the reason(s) for the delay and provide an estimated time ofrepair. 
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SECTION 5: CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS 

Under Normal Operating Conditions, the Licensee shall investigate Subscriber 
complaints referred by the Town within seventy-two (72) hours. The Licensee shall notify the 
Town of those matters that necessitate an excess of seventy-two (72) hours to resolve, but those 
matters must be resolved within fifteen (15) days of the initial complaint. The Town may require 
reasonable documentation to be provided by the Licensee to substantiate the request for 
additional time to resolve the problem. For purposes of this Section, "resolve" means that the 
Licensee shall perform those actions, which, in the normal course of business, are necessary to 
investigate the Customer's complaint and advise the Customer of the results of that investigation. 

SECTION 6: BILLING 

A. Subscriber bills must be itemized to describe Cable Services purchased by 
Subscribers and related equipment charges, and shall include the information required by 207 
CMR 10.03(1) in clear, concise and understandable language and format. Bills shall clearly 
delineate activity during the billing period, including optional charges, rebates, credits, and 
aggregate late charges. Licensee shall, without limitation as to additional line items, be allowed 
to itemize as separate line items, License fees, taxes and/or other governmentally imposed fees. 
The Licensee shall maintain records of the date and place of mailing of bills. 

B. Every Subscriber with a current account balance sending payment directly to 
Licensee shall be given at least five (5) days from the date statements are mailed to the 
Subscriber until the payment due date. 

C. A specific due date shall be listed on the bill of every Subscriber. 

D. Any Subscriber who, in good faith, disputes all or part of any bill shall have the 
option of withholding the disputed amount without disconnect or late fee being assessed until the 
dispute is resolved provided that: 

(1) The Subscriber pays all undisputed charges; 

(2) The Subscriber provides notification of the dispute to Licensee within 
thirty (30) days after the due date; and 

(3) The Subscriber cooperates m determining the accuracy and/or 
appropriateness of the charges in dispute. 

E. The Licensee shall notify the Subscriber of the result of its investigation of any 
complaint and shall give an explanation for its decision within 30 business days after the receipt 
of the complaint. The Subscriber shall forfeit any rights under 207 CMR 10.07 ifhe or she fails 
to pay the undisputed balance within 30 days. Any Subscriber who disagrees with the results of 
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Licensee's investigation shall promptly inquire about and take advantage of any complaint 
resolution mechanism, formal or informal, available under this License or through the Issuing 
Authority before the Cable Division may accept a petition. The Subscriber or Licensee may 
petition the Cable Division to resolve disputed matters within 30 days of any final action. 

F. The Licensee shall forward a copy of any Cable Service related billing inserts or 
other mailing sent to Subscribers to the Town upon request. 

G. The Licensee shall provide all Subscribers with the option of paying for Cable 
Service by check or an automatic payment option where the amount of the bill is automatically 
deducted from a checking account designated by the Subscriber. Licensee may in the future, at 
its' discretion, permit payment by using a major credit card on a preauthorized basis. Based on 
credit history, at the option of the Licensee, the payment alternative may be limited. 

H. The Issuing Authority hereby requests that Licensee omit the information 
specified in 47 C.F.R. §76.952(a) from its Subscriber bills. 

SECTION 7: DEPOSITS, REFUNDS AND CREDITS 

A. The Licensee may require refundable deposits from Subscribers with 1) a poor 
credit or poor payment history, 2) who refuse to provide credit history information to the 
Licensee, or 3) who rent Subscriber equipment from the Licensee, so long as such deposits are 
applied on a non-discriminatory basis. The deposit the Licensee may charge Subscribers with 
poor credit or poor payment history or who refuse to provide credit information may not exceed 
an amount equal to an average Subscriber's monthly charge multiplied by six (6). The maximum 
deposit the Licensee may charge for Subscriber equipment is the cost of the equipment which the 
Licensee would need to purchase to replace the equipment rented to the Subscriber. 

B. The Licensee shall refund or credit the Subscriber for the amount of the deposit 
collected for equipment, which is unrelated to poor credit or poor payment history, after one year 
and provided the Subscriber has demonstrated good payment history during this period. 

C. Under Normal Operating Conditions, refund checks will be issued within the next 
available billing cycle following the resolution of the event giving rise to the refund ( e.g., 
equipment return and final bill payment. 

D. Credits for Cable Service will be issued no later than the Subscriber's next 
available billing cycle, following the determination that a credit is warranted, and the credit is 
approved and processed. Such approval and processing shall not be unreasonably delayed. 

E. Bills shall be considered paid when appropriate payment is received by the 
Licensee or its' authorized agent. Appropriate time considerations shall be included in the 
Licensee's collection procedures to assure that payments due have been received before late 
notices or termination notices are sent. 
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SECTION 8: RATES, FEES AND CHARGES 

A. The Licensee shall not, except to the extent expressly permitted by law, impose 
any fee or charge for Service Calls to a Subscriber's premises to perform any repair or 
maintenance work related to Licensee equipment necessary to receive Cable Service, except 
where such problem is caused by a negligent or wrongful act of the Subscriber (including, but 
not limited to a situation in which the Subscriber reconnects Licensee equipment incorrectly) or 
by the failure of the Subscriber to take reasonable precautions to protect the Licensee's 
equipment (for example, a dog chew). 

B. The Licensee shall provide reasonable notice to Subscribers of the possible 
assessment of a late fee on bills or by separate notice. 

SECTION 9: DISCONNECTION /DENIAL OF SERVICE 

A. The Licensee shall not terminate Cable Service for nonpayment of a delinquent 
account unless the Licensee mails a notice of the delinquency and impending termination prior to 
the proposed final termination. The notice of termination shall be mailed to the Subscriber to 
whom the Cable Service is billed. The notice of delinquency and impending termination may be 
part of a billing statement. 

B. Cable Service terminated in error must be restored without charge within twenty-
four (24) hours of notice. If a Subscriber was billed for the period during which Cable Service 
was terminated in error, a credit shall be issued to the Subscriber if the Service Interruption was 
reported by the Subscriber. 

C. Nothing in these standards shall limit the right of the Licensee to deny Cable 
Service for non-payment of previously provided Cable Services, refusal to pay any required 
deposit, theft of Cable Service, damage to the Licensee's equipment, abusive and/or threatening 
behavior toward the Licensee's employees or representatives, or refusal to provide credit history 
information or refusal to allow the Licensee to validate the identity, credit history and credit 
worthiness via an external credit agency. 

D. Charges for cable service will be discontinued at the time of the requested 
termination of service by the Subscriber, except equipment charges may by applied until 
equipment has been returned. No period of notice prior to requested termination of service can 
be required of Subscribers by the Licensee. No charge shall be imposed upon the Subscriber for 
or related to total disconnection of Cable Service or for any Cable Service delivered after the 
effective date of the disconnect request, unless there is a delay in returning Licensee equipment 
or early termination charges apply pursuant to the Subscriber's service contract. If the 
Subscriber fails to specify an effective date for disconnection, the Subscriber shall not be 
responsible for Cable Services received after the day following the date the disconnect request is 
received by the Licensee. For purposes of this subsection, the term "disconnect" shall include 
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Subscribers who elect to cease receiving Cable Service from the Licensee and to receive Cable 
Service or other multi-channel video service from another Person or entity. 

SECTION 10: COMMUNICATIONS WITH SUBSCRIBERS 

A. Licensee shall require that: (i) all Licensee personnel, contractors and 
subcontractors contacting Subscribers or potential Subscribers outside the office of the Licensee 
wear a clearly visible identification card bearing their name and photograph; (ii) all Licensee 
representatives wear appropriate clothing while working at a Subscriber's premises; and (iii) 
every service vehicle of the Licensee and its contractors or subcontractors shall (a) be clearly 
identified as such to the public, (b) have the Licensee's logo plainly visible and (c) have the 
contractor's/ subcontractor's name plus markings (such as a magnetic door sign) indicating they 
are under contract to the Licensee. In addition, the Licensee shall make reasonable effort to 
account for all identification cards at all times. 

B. Licensee shall require that all contact with a Subscriber or potential Subscriber by 
a Person representing the Licensee shall be conducted in a courteous manner. 

C. The Licensee shall send annual notices to all Subscribers informing them that any 
complaints or inquiries not satisfactorily handled by the Licensee may be referred to the Town. 

D. All notices identified in this Section shall be by either: 

(1) A separate document included with a billing statement or included on the 
portion of the monthly bill that is to be retained by the Subscriber; or 

(2) A separate electronic notification 

E. The Licensee shall provide reasonable notice to Subscribers of any pncmg 
changes or additional changes (excluding sales discounts, new products or offers) and, subject to 
the forgoing, any changes in Cable Services, including channel line-ups. Such notice must be 
given to Subscribers a minimum of thirty (30) days in advance of such changes if within the 
control of the Licensee, and the Licensee shall provide a copy of the notice to the Town 
including how and where the notice was given to Subscribers. 

F. The Licensee shall provide information to all Subscribers about each of the 
following items at the time of installation of Cable Services, annually to all Subscribers, at any 
time upon request, and, subject to Subsection 1 O.E., at least thirty (30) days prior to making 
significant changes in the information required by this Section if within the control of the 
Licensee: 

(1) Products and Cable Service offered; 

(2) Prices and options for Cable Services and condition of subscription to 
Cable Services. Prices shall include those for Cable Service options, equipment rentals, program 
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guides, installation, downgrades, late fees and other fees charged by the Licensee related to 
Cable Service; 

(3) Installation and maintenance policies including, when applicable, 
information regarding the Subscriber's in-home wiring rights during the period Cable Service is 
being provided; 

( 4) Channel positions of Cable Services offered on the Cable System; 

(5) Complaint procedures, including the name, address and telephone number 
of the Town, but with a notice advising the Subscriber to initially contact the Licensee about all 
complaints and questions; 

(6) Procedures for requesting Cable Service credit; 

(7) The availability of a parental control device; 

(8) Licensee practices and procedures for protecting against mvas1on of 
privacy; and 

(9) The address and telephone number of the Licensee's office to which 
complaints may be reported. 

A copy of notices required in this Subsection 10.F. will be given to the Town at least 
fifteen (15) days prior to distribution to Subscribers if the reason for notice is due to a change 
that is within the control of Licensee and as soon as possible if not with the control of Licensee. 

G. Notices of changes in rates shall indicate the Cable Service new rates and old 
rates, if applicable. 

H. Notices of changes of Cable Services and/or Channel locations shall include a 
description of the new Cable Service, the specific channel location, and the hours of operation of 
the Cable Service if the Cable Service is only offered on a part-time basis. In addition, should 
the channel location, hours of operation, or existence of other Cable Services be affected by the 
introduction of a new Cable Service, such information must be included in the notice. 

I. Every notice of termination of Cable Service shall include the following 
information: 

(1) The name and address of the Subscriber whose account is delinquent; 

(2) The amount of the delinquency for all services billed; 

(3) The date by which payment is required in order to avoid termination of 
Cable Service; and 
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( 4) The telephone number for the Licensee where the Subscriber can receive 
additional information about their account and discuss the pending termination. 
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EXHIBITD 
\ 

FORM OF PERFORMANCE BOND 
\, ,, 

·se Bond 

...... ,,., .... .LJN BY THESE P SENT~,: That (name & address) (hereinafter 
called the Princi , and (name and ad -l~s) (hereiturtt~ called the Surety), a corporation duly 
organized the laws of the Stat (stat~ '~held al}d firmly bound unto (name & address) 
(hereinafter ca:lJed the Oblig~~),,µ:r'"t e fµll just sum of\ Dollars 
($ ·,,· · _• ;'t9e p~ym.~~which , well and truly o be made, the said Principal and 
Surety bind th~~~J,j~iil1~~t1ieir heirs adro:i'llfstrators, exec rs, and assigns, jointly and severally, 
firmly by these presents. \ ·· 

· greement dated ___ _ 

.-;:~J;:tF,"'"V' ,1,'( 

WHEREAS, said Principal is r'i' ired to perfprrl{~ertain .9l51igations under,~aid Agreement. 
.,~/c \ ,,• ..,, 

irt , ,:··¥' \_ ,,,;,:: ,- \ 

WHEREAS, the Obligee has',~gr~ed'"'t~''·~ccept t~is bQfrt as security"a(ainst de}ault by Principal 
of performance of its obligatiofi'r~.mder said Agr / 1~nt durin!?i.,lJittime period th bond is in 
effect. 1

(, . ,.__ 

\\ 
'\, \I 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITI/ OFl'.I OBLIG~TION IS SUCHthriNfthe 
Principal shall perform its obligations unaer sa,,J~'}\greement, t~tfthis obligation sµall b¢'!~oid, 
otherwise to remain in full force and effecJ,,i,iunless otherwise terminated, can,cel , 1~r e . · as 
hereinafter provided. 

n'.:i:'.;;;w 

PROVIDED HOWEVER, that this bond is executed subject to th cf11owing express provisions 
and conditions: 

,lliilJ; 

1. In the event of default by the Principal, Obliiett1;hall deliver to Surety a written , ... 
statement of the details of such default within 30 days after the Obligee shall learn of the 
same, such notice to be delivered by certified mail to address of said Surety as stated herein. 

2. This Bond shall be effective _____ , 20_, and shall remain in full force and 
effect thereafter for a period of one year and will automatically extend for additional one 
year periods from the expiry date hereof, or any future expiration date, unless the Surety 
provides to the Obligee not less than sixty (60) days advance written notice of its intent not 
to renew this Bond or unless the Bond is earlier canceled pursuant to the following. This 
Bond may be canceled at any time upon sixty ( 60) days advance written notice from the 
Surety to the Obligee. 
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\ 

\ 

3. Neither cancellation, t~rmin\tion nor refusal by Surety to extend this bond, nor 
inability of Principal to file 1:1, re 1ftcerµ~rl1 bond or replacement security for its obligations under 
said Agreement, shall consf · e a losS!fo ~e Obligee recoverable under this bond. 

4. No clai tion, suit or ptoc ,{cling shall be instituted against this bond unless same 
be brought or i ted and process. ed witbi\ one year after termination or cancellation of 
this bond. \ 

\ 
\ 

s>~o right of actiS) all a~ 11 on this bori or the use of any person, corporation or 
entity other than the. ligee namecitherein or the hf , executors, administrators or successors 
of the Oblige~ \" 

\\ 

0:11'"1ad11·i> liabilitt of tp~etfi~ limited to the enal sum stated herein 
regardless of the . her of years 1 · is bond remains in fo e amount or number of claims 
brought against this bond. · 

ctly one of sur~t~ship only. If any 
conflict or in~onsi~tenc~ sts ~ween the\~uret ' ?bligations.,j,descn~ed in thi~ hon~ and as 
may be descnbed m any ~«tymg agreement · rmit, doc t or contra\t to which this bond 
is related, then the terms of this bond shall ersede and! vail in all resp ' ts. 

This bond shall not bind the Surety 1f'cept~)\by the Obligee by 1t~ing below. 
\ \ 

\ 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the a ve b ded Principa d Surety have h unto··~gned and 
sealed this bond effective this of ___ , 2006. ·. 

Principal Surety 

By: ___________ _ 

.,~-
By: ~.)1"_,l:_ir_,., ____________ _ 

, Attorney-in-Fact 

Accepted by Obligee: ______________ _ 
(Signature & date above - Print Name, Title below) 
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